

**CONSTITUTION & BY-LAWS
OF THE
SCHNECKSVILLE PLAYGROUND ASSOCIATION**

January 1, 2020
Revised: May 20, 2021
Revised: November 16, 2023

Table of Contents:

| | |
|--|--------------|
| ARTICLE I - NAME | 4 |
| ARTICLE II - OBJECTIVES | 4 |
| A. The Objectives of the Association Shall Be: | 4 |
| ARTICLE III - RULES AND GUIDELINES | 4 |
| ARTICLE IV - AFFILIATIONS | 3 |
| A. Softball | 4 |
| B. Baseball | 4 |
| C. Basketball | 4 |
| D. Lacrosse | 5 |
| ARTICLE V - BOARD OF DIRECTORS | 5 |
| A. Membership of the Board | 5 |
| B. Duties of the Board | 5 |
| C. Election of the Board | 5 |
| D. Removal of an Individual from the Board | 6 |
| E. Filling Vacancies | 6 |
| F. Duties of the Officers | 6 |
| ARTICLE VI - MEMBERSHIP | 8 |
| A. Eligibility | 8 |
| B. Registration & Refund Policy | 8 |
| C. Discipline/Suspension/Termination | 7 |
| ARTICLE VII - MEETINGS | 10 |
| A. Annual Meetings | 10 |
| B. Monthly Meetings | 8 |
| C. Board of Directors Meetings | 10 |
| D. Voting | 10 |
| ARTICLE VIII - COACHES' RESPONSIBILITY/AUTHORITY | 10 |
| A. Administrative | 10 |
| B. Fundraising | 10 |
| C. Coaching | 11 |
| D. Miscellaneous | 11 |
| E. Awards | 11 |
| ARTICLE IX - APPEALS | 12 |
| A. Right of Appeal | 12 |
| B. Appeal Procedure | 12 |
| C. Disposition of Appeal | |
| | Error |
| ! Bookmark not defined. | |
| ARTICLE X - COMMITTEES | 12 |
| A. Grievance Committee | 12 |
| B. Organizational Committees | 13 |
| ARTICLE XI - EFFECTIVE DATE AND FILING OF BY-LAW | 13 |
| A. Effective Date | 13 |
| B. Filing of the By-laws | 13 |
| ARTICLE XII - AMENDMENTS TO THE BY-LAWS | 13 |
| A. Method of Amending | 13 |
| B. Effective Date of Amendments | 14 |
| C. Filing of Amendments | 13 |
| ARTICLE XIII - DISSOLUTION | 14 |

ARTICLE I - NAME

This association shall bear the name - "**Schnecksville Playground Association**" also known as the "Association".

ARTICLE II - OBJECTIVES

A. The Objectives of the Association Shall Be:

1. Provide opportunities for youths to participate in team sports in a safe, well-supervised environment.
2. Promote the ideals of good sportsmanship, fair play, teamwork and "healthy" competition.
3. Operate with priorities in the following order:
 - a) Provide the opportunity for everyone to play.
 - b) Always promote having fun and learning ahead of winning.
 - c) Strive to develop the confidence and self-esteem of each individual participant.
 - d) Maintain a strong-non-competitive program for all beginning and less-skilled players.
 - e) Provide situations where players are competing within an appropriate skill level.
 - f) Provide opportunities for higher level competition for players whose skills can benefit from such competition.

ARTICLE III - RULES AND GUIDELINES

A. Rules and Guidelines

1. The Board of Directors can establish, interpret and enforce rules and guidelines as long as they are consistent with these By-laws.
2. Rules and guidelines should be put in writing and should be presented to the Association members at the next monthly meeting.
3. Whenever rules or guidelines conflict with the By-laws, the By-laws shall apply.

ARTICLE IV - AFFILIATIONS

A. Softball

1. The Association is a member of the American Softball Association (ASA).
2. The Association will make all attempts to work within the framework of this organization. Any occurrence within the softball program, not specifically covered by the By-Laws of the Association or its various rules, shall be covered by the rules of the American Softball Association (ASA).
3. The Association may further affiliate as deemed advisable by the Board of Directors.

B. Baseball

1. The Association may affiliate in the future as deemed advisable by the Board of Directors.

C. Basketball

1. The Association may affiliate in the future as deemed advisable by the Board of Directors.

D. Lacrosse

1. The Association may affiliate in the future as deemed advisable by the Board of Directors.
2. The Association will make all attempts to work within the framework of this organization. Any occurrence within the lacrosse program, not specifically covered by the By-Laws of the Association or its various rules, shall be covered by the rules of U.S. Lacrosse.

ARTICLE V - BOARD OF DIRECTORS

A. Membership of the Board

1. The Board of Directors, also known as the "Board", shall consist of the following:
 - a) Elected Officers (Executive Board)
 - 1) President
 - 2) Vice-President
 - 3) Treasurer
 - 4) Secretary
 - 5) Marketing/Fundraising Director
 - 6) Field Maintenance Coordinator
 - 7) Webmaster
 - 8) Social Media Coordinator
 - b) Baseball Coordinator (Appointed)
 - c) Lacrosse Coordinator (Appointed)
 - d) Basketball Coordinator (Appointed)
 - e) Assistant Sports Coordinator (deemed by President/Coordinator) max is two per each sport (NON-VOTING)

B. Duties of the Board

1. The Board shall have the responsibility of conducting the business of the Association during the time between annual Association meetings.
2. The Board shall hold regular meetings of the Board, with all members notified in advance.

All Executive Board Members and Appointed Coordinators are considered Voting Members of the Board for a total of eleven (11) members.

3. Meetings of the Board shall be a quorum when at least one-half of the voting members of the Board are present. All decisions shall be determined by a majority vote of all those present and voting unless defined otherwise in these By-Laws. No individual, regardless of how many Board positions he/she holds, shall ever have more than one vote. The presiding officer shall vote in the event of a tie in order to resolve the issue at hand.
4. The Board shall report on activities at monthly meetings of the Association. The Board shall also present minutes of all Board Meetings held since the last monthly meeting of the Association.
5. The Board shall appoint Coordinators for each sport. These Coordinators shall become voting members of the Board as soon as they are appointed.
6. The Board shall review and render a decision to decide any conflict of interests. Such decisions will be considered final. (A conflict of interest may exist when the interests or concerns of any Board Member, or said persons immediate family, or any party, group or organization in which said persons hold a position as an employee, officer, director, or partner, may be seen as competing with the interests or concerns of the Association.)
7. The Board may appoint any committees deemed necessary for proper Association functioning.

C. Election of the Board

1. The Board shall be elected at the Annual Meeting of the Association held in November, and shall, serve as follows:
 - a) Executive Board: All officers will carry a one year term
2. Members of the Board shall be elected only if they are personally present unless written notice has been filed with the Secretary expressing an interest in a particular position.
3. When more than one individual is running for a specific Officer's position, the voting for that specific position shall be by secret ballot. When only one individual is running for a specific position, the election shall be by voice vote. A simple majority of votes by all Association members present and voting is necessary for election. If no nominee receives a majority, a run-off election will be held between the two nominees receiving the most votes.
4. No names will be placed in nomination until the Annual meeting begins. All names will be placed in by nomination from the floor.
5. The Board will be elected before the four (4) coordinators are elected. Each office will be voted upon individually, with the winner being determined before the next office is voted upon. Nominations for a given office will be made after the election for the preceding office has been completed. An individual losing an election is eligible to run for a Board position voted upon later. The order of elections will be as follows:
 - a) President
 - b) Vice President
 - c) Treasurer
 - d) Secretary
 - e) Webmaster
 - f) Marketing / Fundraising Director
 - g) Field Maintenance
 - h) Social Media Coordinator
6. All Sports Coordinators with the same term shall be voted upon simultaneously. If Memberships with different terms are being voted upon, the Memberships with the longest terms shall be voted upon first. All nominations shall be made for the positions with the longest terms. Each Member of the Association is eligible to vote for as many nominees as there are positions to be filled. Nobody can vote for the same nominee more than once. Voting shall be by secret Ballot. Nominees receiving the most votes will assume the Board position. There will be no run-off elections.
7. All elected officers shall assume office effective at the end of the meeting at which they are elected.
8. Sports Coordinators shall be appointed as defined in Section B.5. If a Member of the Board is appointed to be a Sport Coordinator, a replacement Member will be elected or appointed.
9. Board Members, whose terms are not expiring at the close of the Annual meeting in progress, shall be responsible for collecting and counting votes and for reporting results. If there are less than three (3) such Board/Members present the Presiding Officer shall appoint members of the Association as substitutes.

D. Removal of an Individual from the Board

1. Any member of the Board of Directors may be removed from office by a 2/3 vote of all of the Association Members, present and voting, at either an Annual Meeting or a Special Meeting called for this stated purpose in accordance with these By-Laws.
2. The voting on removal shall be by secret ballot.
3. Removal of a Member from the Board does not affect the status of rights of the individual, or of any relatives, except the loss of Office.
4. If a Member of the Board shall be removed in accordance with this section that Office shall immediately be declared vacant. Such a vacancy shall be filled in accordance with the method prescribed in Section E below.

E. Filling Vacancies

1. If a vacancy shall exist in any position on the Board of Directors for any reason, the Board may elect a replacement. Election shall be by a majority of all Board Members in office.
2. Any vacancy shall be filled for the remaining portion of term only.

F. Duties of the Officers

President

- a) The president shall supervise all activities of the Association and the work of the Board of Directors.
- b) He/she shall preside at all meetings of the Board and the Association.
- c) The President is the general representative of the Association in all legal and other matters.
- d) The President is an "ad hoc" member of all committees.
- e) The President shall cause the books of the Association to be audited annually by auditors, selected from the membership, who shall not be Members of the Board. The report of the auditors shall be available to the members at all times.

Vice-President

- a) In the event of the absence or resignation of the President, the Vice President shall succeed to the powers of the President
- b) The Vice President shall, at the request of the President, take responsibility for organizing and executing activities

Treasurer

- a) The Treasurer shall have charge of the finances of the Association.
- b) The Treasurer shall be responsible for keeping accurate financial records and shall present a detailed report of the financial position at each Board meeting and a summary report at each monthly meeting of the Association.
- c) All disbursements from the funds of the Association shall be approved and signed by the President, Treasurer or Vice President. Any disbursements in excess of \$1000 must be approved in advance by the Board.
- d) The Treasurer shall prepare the annual budget for the Association. This budget shall be presented for approval at the Annual meeting of the Association.
- e) The Treasurer shall manage the cash flow of the Association.
- f) The Treasurer shall prepare and submit all information required by Local, State and Federal tax laws to enable continuation of the Association as a non-profit organization.
- g) The Treasurer shall prepare and submit all information required by North Whitehall Township, the United Way and any other organization in order to request and receive contributions.

Secretary

- a) The Secretary shall attend to all correspondence.
- b) The Secretary shall record the minutes of all regular monthly Association meetings and all Board meetings and shall maintain the Official Copy of same. In his/her absence, the Presiding Officer shall appoint a replacement.
- c) Copies of minutes for monthly Association meeting and Board meetings shall be distributed at the next monthly Association meeting
- d) The Secretary shall maintain other records as set forth in these By-Laws such as Signed Official By-Laws and Official amendments to the By-Laws.

Webmaster

- a) The Webmaster is responsible for the web site and updating information.
- b) The webmaster is responsible for renewing and keeping up to date with the organization we use for web page, on-line registration, etc.
- c) The webmaster will coordinate with the sport coordinators to display highlights, announcements, awards, pictures, etc.

Marketing / Fundraising Director

- a) The Marketing Director is responsible for – All communication to membership regarding, registration, organizational events they deem necessary for Schnecksville Playground Association.
- b) Responsible for all Fundraising efforts they deem necessary for Schnecksville Playground Association

Field Maintenance Coordinator

- a) Purchase the necessary items to maintain playing fields
- b) Responsible for inspecting/fixing equipment that maintain playing fields

Social Media Coordinator

- a) Manage the SPA Facebook and Instagram Pages
- b) Photograph various games (in accordance with SPA Social Media Policy) and place said events on Facebook and Instagram

1. Sports Coordinator - One For Each Sport

- a) The Coordinator will identify, assign and schedule practice facilities as deemed necessary.
- b) The Coordinator will define capital expenses: any equipment, materials and uniform needs early enough to enable spending approval, to be included in the budget and actual procurement without paying a premium. Capital expenses are defined as any item over \$500.00. For any purchase over \$500 the Coordinator must get a quote/receipt. Any purchase over \$1000 must have a minimum of 2 separate quotes and approved by the SPA Treasure and one additional board member.
- c) The Coordinator will recruit head coaches and assistant coaches as necessary.
- d) Deleted.
- e) The Coordinator, or his/her designee, will represent the Association at any meetings of leagues in which the Association participates or is considering participation.
- f) The Coordinator will coordinate and supervise the "tryouts" and "drafts" to assign players to specific teams, consistent with the Rules/Guidelines in force.
- g) The Coordinator shall assign responsibilities for field maintenance, refreshment stand operation and other specific tasks required to conduct the sport's program.
- h) The Coordinator shall collect and maintain a hard copy of all required clearances for all coaches and volunteers.

ARTICLE VI - MEMBERSHIP

A. Eligibility

1. Any person who is a parent or guardian of a child registered in a sports program, or who acts as a head coach or assistant coach, or who holds an elected or appointed position in the Association, shall be a member of the Association for a period of 12 months following registration, election or appointment except as modified per the following Section B.
2. All Voting Members of the Board are allowed one free registration for one child per sports season
 - a) This will exclude uniform costs
 - b) This will exclude off season workout registration costs

B. Registration & Refund Policy

1. All members registering for any SPA sponsored activity are required to pay the full registration fee set forth by the SPA Board. Registration rates are subject to change from year to year. All registrations will need to be completed online at www.schnecksவில்sports.com. SPA Coordinators will set a registration date schedule that will be used annually. If registration is not completed by the deadline date, player will be unable to participate or be put on a waiting list if the Coordinator warrants it.

For any off-season activities offered by SPA, the Sports Coordinator reserves the rights to use the online system for registration for such activities. The rates for off-season activities will vary and will be set by the Sports Coordinator.

If a member is unable to use the online registration, they are to contact the appropriate SPA Coordinator to make arrangements to pay for all fees associated with registering for said sport.

2. **Refund Policy** - SPA reserves the right to hold all registration fees paid for by a member for a particular sports season with the exception of the below instances. All refund requests must be reviewed and approved by the Board. Refunds apply to registration fees only. Uniforms fees, league fees, tournament fees, etc. will not be refunded.

- a) If a member of another organization who tries out for an SPA competitive Travel Team does not make the travel team, and they wish to return to their home organization, they may be refunded the original registration fees less a \$20 try-out fee that is non-refundable. This request must be presented in writing to the Sports Coordinator prior to try-outs beginning. Failure to provide this documentation to the Sports Coordinator prior to try-out will result in no refund.
- b) A member who is injured during the season when less than 25% of said season has elapsed may receive a refund for registration fees only. Said member must provide medical documentation to the Coach and Sports Coordinator that they are not able to participate due to injury. Once the refund is provided, said Member is considered a non-active Member unable to participate for the remainder of the current season. Failure to comply with non-active Member status can result in disciplinary actions for the team and member in violation. Provisions will be considered for players wearing a medical device. Any player in a hard cast is not eligible to play due to insurance coverage.
- c) A Member who has been affected by a tragic event or a series of tragic events.
- d) If there are an insufficient number of players required to form a team and a Member cannot be placed on another equivalent team.
- e) A team who can no longer participate within a season for actions that are out of a Members control.

SPA will not refund registrations to its Members for any of the following reasons:

- a) The Member is removed from a team or off-season activity for violation of the Code of Conduct Policy.
- b) The Member is dissatisfied with the VOLUNTEER coach or coaches that Member's child is placed on.
- c) The Member wishes to no longer participate on a team after the team or coach is named.
- d) The Member voluntarily quits.

C. Discipline/Suspension/Termination

1. Membership may be terminated by resignation or action by the Board of Directors.
2. The Board of Directors, by a 2/3 vote of all Members shall have the authority to discipline, suspend or terminate a member when the conduct of the member is considered detrimental to the best interest of the Association. Misconduct includes, but is not limited to, non-compliance with Rules/Guidelines in effect at the time.
3. The Association Member or Members involved shall be notified of the Board meeting at which actions will be considered and shall be informed of the nature of the charges. The Member or Members shall be given the opportunity to appear at the meeting to answer the charges.
4. Discipline applied to a Member of the Association could include the loss of any or all of the following privileges plus any other restrictions deemed appropriate by the Board of Directors:
 - a) Holding any office or appointed position.
 - b) Participation as a coach or referee/umpire.
 - c) Representing the Association at any functions/activities.
 - d) Attending any Monthly, Board or Special meetings of the Association.
 - e) Attending any games or practice for a minimum of 2 separate events to include regular season game and playoffs, championship games up to a maximum of the entire season plus championship games.
 - f) Any fees/fines incurred as a result of a parent(s) behavior is the responsibility of that parent. SPA will not cover the cost of fines.
5. The disciplining of a Member of the Association does not affect the status or rights of any relatives of the individual, either youth or adult.
6. SPA reserves the right to open an investigation regarding an Individual's violation of the Code of Conduct, which may result in immediate suspension of all SPA Activities until the investigation is complete or the SPA Board has the ability to meet.

ARTICLE VII - MEETINGS

A. Annual Meetings

1. The Annual Meeting of the Association shall be held in November of each year for the purposes of electing the Board of Directors, approving the budget, amending By-Laws and voting on grievances per Article IX and is open to all members. The November Monthly Association Meeting shall be held immediately preceding the Annual Meeting.
2. The meeting shall be held no later than the third Thursday of the month. The meeting time, date and location shall be publicized at least one month prior to the meeting.

B. Monthly Meetings

1. Meetings of the general membership of the Association shall be held monthly. The purpose of such meetings is for the Board of Directors to report on significant actions taken or business transacted and for members to provide input to the Board on any issues they feel should be considered for Board action. Minutes of the last Monthly meeting, and all Board Meetings held since the last Monthly Meeting, shall be presented.
2. Information needed by coaches and parents shall be provided at these meetings.
3. The Presiding Officer shall define the time, date and location of the next Monthly Meeting before adjournment.
4. The November Monthly Association Meeting shall be held immediately preceding the Annual Meeting.

C. Board of Directors Meetings

1. These meetings shall only be attended by Members of the Board and by individuals specifically invited by one or more Members of the Board.
2. Invited attendees are only allowed to participate in discussions for which they have specifically been invited unless otherwise allowed by the Presiding Officer.
3. Other meeting requirements are defined in Article V

D. Voting

1. All members of the Association shall have the right to vote at any Annual or Special Meeting.
2. No individual shall ever have the right to cast more than one vote.
3. No individual shall ever have the right to vote unless that individual is present when the vote is taken.

ARTICLE VIII - COACHES' RESPONSIBILITY/AUTHORITY

A. Administrative

1. Each Sports Coordinator is responsible for handing out uniforms and equipment at the start of their respective playing seasons and collecting all items for return to the Association after completion of the playing season. The time and place of pick-up and return will be defined by the respective sports coordinators and uniform coordinators.
2. Each coach should attend an annual or semi-annual coaches' meeting called by their respective sport coordinator, during their sport's active, regular league playing season including one meeting before the start of the season and one meeting after completion of the season. A representative from the team can be sent in place of the coach.

3. Each coach is responsible for the proper completion and submission of registration materials required by their respective leagues.
4. Each coach is responsible for his/her team's full participation in the taking of team pictures including the distribution of information, forms and the pictures themselves.
5. Each coach is a Member of the Association, and as such, is entitled to one vote at Annual and Special Association meetings as set forth in ARTICLE VII of these By-Laws.
6. All coaches and assistants must have current background checks on file with SPA and shall be provided to the sports coordinator. The Sports Coordinator will file all background checks for five (5) years.
7. Officiating fees will be issued to coaches only. The only exception is when the coordinator is also a coach.
8. Each Coach should sign the Coaches Code of Conduct at www.schnecksvillesports.com and register as a Coach prior to the season beginning. There are no exceptions.
9. After a player suffers a serious injury (broken bone, etc), they will not be allowed back on the field of play without a written doctor's note. It is not the decision of the coach to determine a player's eligibility.

B. Fundraising

1. Each sport is responsible for the team's active participation in all fundraising activities.
2. No fundraising activities shall be conducted without the advance notice and approval of the President and the Treasurer. Their approval will be based upon compliance with requirements defined by the Rules/Guidelines Committee as documented in the current published guidelines plus published amendments. Information required before a request will be considered includes:
 - a) Description of type of activity.
 - b) Identify individuals responsible for conducting the activity and for collecting/accounting for the money.
 - c) Identify expected sources of the money (ex: local merchants, general public or parents of Association players).
 - d) Proposed use of funds collected (ex: a specific tournament).
 - e) Dispensation of funds remaining after completion of the funded event or activity.
3. The term "fundraising" also applies to the request for cash donations from parents of players on a coach's own team for purposes such as team recreational activities, the purchase of equipment/ uniforms or tournaments participation.
4. All fundraising will either be for the general use of the Association, or for a specific individual team's purpose with an identifiable purpose or goal.
5. If a request does not clearly fall within the guidelines already established by the Rules/Guidelines Committee, the request will be forward to the Committee for consideration.
6. Resolution is required within 14 calendar days of when all required information has been submitted to the President or the Treasurer.
7. Documentation must be submitted to the Treasurer which fully accounts for all funds collected.

C. Coaching

1. Each coach shall strive to promote the ideals of good sportsmanship, fair play, teamwork and "healthy" competition. He/she shall provide the opportunity for everyone to play and shall never stress winning ahead of having fun and learning. He/she shall strive to develop the confidence and self-esteem of each individual player on the team regardless of abilities.
2. Each coach is responsible for the conduct of his/her player's assistant coaches, fans and parents at practices and games.
 - a) All necessary precautions shall be taken to prevent the parties listed from threatening or assaulting referees before, during or after a game.

- b) All parties shall conduct themselves Consistent with the objectives established in ARTICLE II and the guidelines established by the Rules/Guidelines Committee.
 - c) The coach has the right to send a player away from the playing site in order to meet the objectives of this section of the by-laws.
 - d) The coach has the right to send a parent, assistant coach or other spectator away from the playing site in order to meet the objectives of this section of the by-laws.
 - e) Failure of an individual to leave the playing site per items (c) and (d) above is just cause for disciplinary action as provided in ARTICLE VI, Section B of these by-laws.
 - f) The head coach MUST notify the presiding President via Electronic Mail or telephonic communication of any ejection by a referee on a Member to include a coach; assistant coach; fan or parent. The notification must occur within 48 hours following the incident. The coach must supply factual information relating specifically to the ejection, with names of witnesses and phone numbers.
 - g) Failure to control any of the parties listed above can result in disciplinary action(s) as determined by the Board, in accordance with these by-laws and guidelines which are in effect at the time of the incidents in question, as established by the Rules/Guidelines Committee.
3. Each coach shall ensure the full, active participation of players and coaches in all special events sponsored by the association or any League in which the team is registered. This includes all-star games and "select team" programs.

D. Miscellaneous

1. All coaches shall adhere to both the letter and the intent of the by-laws and all Rules/Guidelines in effect.

E. Awards

1. Awards may be offered for teams that win a championship in a league that keeps standings.
2. For times when a child will be eligible for additional awards, the Association may provide a substitute award with a value of up to \$25.00 per player.
3. The nature of the award shall be determined by the team. If the team cannot decide on a suitable award, the coach will make the final determination.
4. The award cannot be made in cash. Suitable awards are jackets, sweatshirts, T-shirts, sports bags, hats, etc. The cost of the award above the amount authorized by the Board shall be the responsibility of the child's parent or guardian.
5. All awards must be approved by the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE IX - APPEALS

A. Right of Appeal

1. Any ruling by the Board of Directors, an Officer or a Committee, may be appealed.
2. Any player or Member of the Association may submit an appeal, a protest or a grievance.

B. Appeal Procedure

1. Appeals must be made within 7 calendar days of publication of the original decision being appealed.
2. All protests or grievances must be made within 4 calendar days of the incident.
3. Appeals must be in writing, addressed to the President, with a copy to the Secretary.
4. The President shall be responsible for giving copies to all individuals where deemed appropriate.

C. Disposition of Appeal

1. All appeals, protests or grievances shall be heard by the duly appointed Grievance Committee of the Association who shall report its recommendations to the Board.
2. A decision shall be reached by the Board and all parties involved shall be notified within fourteen (14) calendar days.
3. The Association membership may vote to overrule a decision on an appeal by a two-thirds (2/3) majority of the members (per ARTICLE VI) present and voting at the next Annual or Special Association meeting following publication of the appeal decision. The Special meeting must be called with this item of business specifically stated as the purpose of the meeting.

ARTICLE X - COMMITTEES

A. Grievance Committee

1. This will be a standing committee appointed by the Board.
2. The purpose of the Grievance committee is to take prompt action on all appeals, protests or grievances.

B. Organizational Committees

1. The Board of Directors may appoint special committees as deemed necessary to conduct the business of the Association.
2. No member can participate in a specific matter if he/she has a direct involvement in the grievance or will benefit from the decision as determined by the Board. *(moved from Article XI-A-4)*

ARTICLE XI - EFFECTIVE DATE AND FILING OF BY-LAW

A. Effective Date

1. These By-laws shall become effective immediately upon their adoption.

B. Filing of the By-laws

1. The By-laws shall be retyped as approved and shall be distributed by the Secretary at the next Monthly Association meeting.
2. The President and Secretary must sign the Official Copy of these By-laws.
3. This signed Official Copy shall be maintained on file by the Secretary.

ARTICLE XII - AMENDMENTS TO THE BY-LAWS

A. Method of Amending

1. The Secretary shall announce, at a Monthly Meeting of the Association, the time, place and date of the Annual or Special meeting at which amendments are to be read and adopted.
2. Typed copies of the amendments shall be presented to each Member of the Association present at the Annual or Special meeting at which the amendments are to be read and adopted.
3. As each proposed amendment to the By-laws is read, it will be discussed and revised as deemed necessary.

4. At the conclusion of the reading, it shall take the affirmative vote of at least two-thirds (2/3) of the Members of the Association (per ARTICLE VI) present and voting, to approve these amendments for presentation at the next Annual or Special meeting of the Association.
5. The amendment shall be retyped per changes voted upon at the first meeting. Revised copies shall be distributed at the next Annual or Special meeting of the Association.
6. It shall take the affirmative vote of at least two-thirds (2/3) of the members of the Association (per ARTICLE VI) present and voting, to amend these By-laws.

B. Effective Date of Amendments

1. Amendments shall become a part of the By-laws immediately upon their adoption.

C. Filing of Amendments

1. The President and Secretary must sign the Official Copy of all amendments to these By-laws.
2. The Secretary shall keep in his/her possession the Official Copy of all amendments to the Official Copy of the By-laws.
3. The By-laws shall be revised to incorporate all adopted amendments and a new Official Copy shall be signed by the President and the Secretary.
4. The Secretary shall distribute copies of the updated By-laws at the next Monthly meeting after adoption of the amendments.

ARTICLE XIII - DISSOLUTION

In the event of a dissolution of the Association or the winding up of its affairs, or other liquidation of its assets, the Association's property shall not be conveyed to any organization created or operated for profit or to any individual for less than the fair market value of such property; all assets remaining after all debts and expenses of the Association have been paid or provided for shall be conveyed or distributed by the Board of Directors to one or more organization qualifying for the exemption afforded by Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. Any assets not so distributed shall be disposed of by a Court of Common Pleas of competent jurisdiction exclusively for such purposes of to such organization or organizations, as said Court shall determine, which are organized and operated exclusively for such purposes.

OFFICIAL COPY OF BY-LAWS, Effective November 16, 2023

Patrick Carl, President

Thomas Bradshaw, Secretary